N0N-CONFIDENTIAL

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 March 2020
Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee will be held in Committee Room 1,
Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, B79 7BZ on Wednesday, 25th March,
2020 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive
AGENDA
NON CONFIDENTIAL
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 16)
To receive the minutes of this Committee’s meetings on:
 30th January 2020; and
 5th February 2020.

3

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this
meeting.
When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should
specify the nature of such interest. Members should leave the room if they
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not
have a dispensation.

4

Chair's Update

5

Responses to Reports of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee
To receive an update on responses received to reports of the Corporate Scrutiny
Committee.

6

Consideration of Matters referred to the Corporate Scrutiny Committee
from Cabinet / Council
(Discussion item)

7

2019/20 Forward Plan
Discussion item – link to the Forward Plan.
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1

8

Report on Member Induction, Training and MembersZone (Pages 17 - 26)
(Report of the Executive Director, Organisation)

9

Member Support Working Group
To receive an update from the Member Support working group.

10

Review of Council and Cabinet Decisions since May 2019 (Pages 27 - 52)
To receive a summary of Council and Cabinet decisions since May 2019.

11

Corporate Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 53 - 54)
To consider the Committee’s Work Plan.

______________________________________

Access arrangements
If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for.
Filming of Meetings
The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast. Please refer to the Council’s
Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can
be found here for further information.
The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed. Where
possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front
of the public gallery. This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the
public being accidentally filmed.
If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the
location of any cameras when selecting a seat.
FAQs
For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page
here

.

To Councillors: T Jay, B Price, R Bilcliff, R Claymore, R Ford, J Faulkner, S Goodall,
Dr S Peaple, P Standen and M Summers

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 30th JANUARY 2020
PRESENT:

Councillor T Jay (Chair), Councillors B Price, R Bilcliff,
R Claymore, R Ford, S Goodall, Dr S Peaple, P Standen and
M Summers

CABINET

Councillor R Pritchard and Councillor J Oates.

The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Rob
Barnes (Executive Director Communities), Anna Miller (Assistant Director –
Growth & Regeneration), Paul Weston (Assistant Director Assets), Rebecca Neill
(Head of Audit & Governance and Monitoring Officer) and Jo Hutchison
(Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer)
There were no apologies.
70

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting held on 5th December 2019 were approved and
signed as a correct record.
(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor M Summers)

71

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

72

CHAIR'S UPDATE
The Chair reminded members that all Councillors had been invited to a Housing
Disrepairs & Investment Contractors Members presentation on 12th February
2020.

73

RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
The Chair reported that the update on the Cleaning Services review which had
been requested at the 5th December 2019 Committee meeting had been
circulated to all members.
Members confirmed that they had no further comments on this matter.
1

Page 5

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

74

30 January 2020

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CORPORATE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FROM CABINET / COUNCIL
No items had been referred to this Committee.

75

WORKING GROUP UPDATES
The Chair updated the Committee on the work that had been undertaken by the
QPR Executive Summary working group and reported that the proposed
summary report had been included on the agenda for the next Corporate Scrutiny
Committee meeting on 5th February 2020 and would be discussed at that
meeting.
The Chair reported that his discussions continued on the utilisation of scoping
documents and that he would bring forward an item on this matter, if required.

76

2019/20 FORWARD PLAN
No further items from the Forward Plan were identified for this Committee’s
consideration at this time.

77

REVIEW OF HOUSING GARAGE SITES
The Committee received the Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and
Finance on the Review of Housing Garage Sites and the Chair welcomed the
Portfolio Holder, the Executive Director Communities and the Assistant Director
Assets to the meeting.
The report set out the project plan for the review of housing garage sites. The
Portfolio Holder reported that a desktop exercise had been undertaken and two
work streams identified.
Members of the Committee sought clarification on:
 the lack of engagement with all ward councillors in the desk top exercise.
The Portfolio Holder reported that this was a Cabinet project which at a
later stage would involve all ward councillors in the process. The Portfolio
Holder reported that the project was currently at an early stage.
 the lack of detail within the report on the issues which led to this review.
The Chair asked that the Portfolio Holder and Officers consider the comments
made in terms of the contents of the report.
RESOLVED that the Committee endorsed the project plan for review of the
housing garage sites.
(Moved by Councillor M Summers and seconded by Councillor B Price)
In accordance with Rule 12.5 (Right to require individual vote to be recorded) of
Schedule 1 (Non-Regulatory Procedure Rules), Councillors P Standen, Dr S
Peaple and R Bilcliff voted against the above motion.
2

Page 6

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

30 January 2020

The Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance, the Executive Director, Communities
and the Assistant Director, Assets left the meeting.
78

GUNGATE UPDATE
The Committee received the report of the Chief Executive which provided an
update to the Committee on the progress on the Gungate Masterplan
programme.
The Chair welcomed the Portfolio Holder for Growth and Regeneration, the Chief
Executive and the Assistant Director, Growth and Regeneration to the meeting.
The Chief Executive reported that the council had purchased the precinct site a
few years ago as an investment opportunity with regeneration potential. The
basis of the council purchasing the site was the regeneration opportunity in that
part of town. The Chief Executive reported that Cabinet had approved a
preferred draft masterplan and authorised the Chief Executive and his team to
enter into discussions and prepare and submit funding applications. In addition
consultants were appointed who have produced a preferred option. The
masterplan had identified various sites which were suitable for different uses,
however, the overall plan had retained flexibility to ensure that opportunities could
be maximised as it was reported that one criteria for the council was to ensure
that the project delivered an appropriate return on the council’s investment.
The Chief Executive reported that discussions with Staffordshire County Council,
who own a site adjacent to council owned property, had been positive and the
council has had discussions with other landowners on the site and whilst
discussions with some landowners were underway discussions with one
landowner had not progressed as well, such that other methods were being
considered, including the consideration of the use of a compulsory purchase
order.
The Chief Executive reported that the master planning process needed to be
considered by scrutiny and then Cabinet and then proceed to public consultation.
In terms of timing, consultation on the Gungate Masterplan was not expected to
commence until after the May elections.
The Chief Executive reported that the key issues for the Council were timing in
terms of land assembly and the viability of the project, in terms of achieving
necessary funding.
The Committee sought and received clarification in the following areas:



the facilitation of electric vehicle charging in any new multi-storey car park,
the principle of which the Chief Executive supported.
the interaction between the Gungate project and the Future High Street
Fund project. The Chief Executive reported that there was no overlap
between these two projects and that the Gungate project was a standalone scheme, however the Gungate scheme would demonstrate the
Council’s commitment to Tamworth’s high street and show that
3

Page 7

Corporate Scrutiny Committee







30 January 2020

interventions were being planned in Gungate which would help support the
growth of the town. The Assistant Director reported that the two schemes
complement one another and whilst the rules for the development of the
business case for the Future High Street fund application were strict, the
costs and benefits being delivered by the Gungate scheme could be
reported as part of the Future High Street Fund project. The Portfolio
Holder reminded members that the Future High Street Fund was a
competitive process with other local authorities and the Gungate project
helped to make Tamworth’s application more competitive.
whether Officers had seen any evidence of the easing of the Green Book
rules in their application to this project which the Prime Minister had
recently announced. The Assistant Director reported that it was not
expected that there would be any changes before the submission of the
outline submission in mid March 2020, but it was possible that there could
be changes prior to the final submission to Government.
the potential timing and cost implications involved with any potential legal
process to fully assemble the land. It was reported that the project was
planned to be developed in a staged process which would allow some
flexibility.
the engagement process with all councillors. The Portfolio Holder and the
Chief Executive recognised the importance for all councillors to be involved
in this major undertaking. It was agreed that a seminar involving all
members (anticipated May 2020) would be held prior to Cabinet to provide
an opportunity to view and comment on proposals. The members seminar
would be followed by consideration at a scrutiny committee (anticipated
June 2020) where recommendations to Cabinet could be proposed.
Following any Cabinet approval the Masterplan would be issued for public
consultation.

The Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth, the Chief Executive, the Assistant
Director, Growth and Regeneration and Councillor R Ford left the meeting.
79

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN
The Chair reported that he proposed to change the date of the March meeting
from 12th March. The Chair reported that the preferred date to move this meeting
to would be Wednesday 25th March 2020 and he canvassed members’ views on
this revised date. Councillor Dr S Peaple reported that he would not be able to
attend a meeting on the revised date. Advice was sought as to whether this
would affect his attendance which it was confirmed that it would. Following
confirmation that other members were available for that date, the Chair reported
that the meeting would be rescheduled to 25th March.
The items on the Work Plan were considered and it was agreed as follows:



Member Support working group (member communications) – Councillors S
Goodall and Dr S Peaple to revisit and consider whether to bring an
update to 25th March meeting.
12 month review of Cabinet decisions – the Chair and scrutiny officer to
produce a summary of the Cabinet decisions over last 12 months for
4

Page 8

Corporate Scrutiny Committee



30 January 2020

circulation to members. The Leader to be invited to attend 25th March
meeting.
Gungate Masterplan to be added to a meeting in June 2020 (date to be
confirmed).

The Work Plan was amended as follows:
Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan
Work Plan 2019 – 2020
TARGET
MEETING
DATE

SUBJECT

5th February
2020
5th February
2020
5th February
2020

QPR Q3 2019/20 Report

25th March
2020
25th March
2020
25th March
2020

Member Training update

May 2020
June 2020
June 2020

Parking Toolkit review
Gungate Masterplan
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme
2021 onwards - revisit
Review of Legal Services (post
implementation)
The Assembly Rooms – review of
project
Housing Repairs & Investment
Contract Review
Solway Trading Company Update (2x
per year)
Market tender progress Update
Asset Management update

July 2020
August 2020
TBC
TBC
TBC
Quarter 4 2020

Review of senior management
restructuring (update)
Working group report on QPR Report
Executive Summary

MEETING WHEN
ITEM ADDED TO
WORK PLAN
Regular item

June 2019

June 2019

Member Support Working group – sub
group on Member Communications
Review of Cabinet decisions over
previous 12 month period

5

Page 9

October 2019
January 2020
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
December 2019
August 2019
December 2019

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

30 January 2020

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings
25th March 2020 (moved from 12th March)

Chair

6

Page 10

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 5th FEBRUARY 2020
PRESENT:

Councillor T Jay (Chair), Councillors B Price, R Claymore,
S Goodall, Dr S Peaple, P Standen and M Summers

CABINET

Councillor Daniel Cook

The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Anica
Goodwin (Executive Director Organisation), Stefan Garner (Executive Director
Finance), Rebecca Neill (Head of Audit & Governance and Monitoring Officer),
John Day (Knowledge, Performance and Insight Co-ordinater) and Jo Hutchison
(Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer)
Apologies received from: Councillor(s) R Bilcliff and R Ford
80

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

81

CHAIR'S UPDATE
There was no update from the Chair at this time.

82

RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
No reports of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee had been made to Cabinet since
the last meeting.

83

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CORPORATE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FROM CABINET / COUNCIL
No items had been referred to this Committee.

84

WORKING GROUP UPDATES
There were no working group updates received at this meeting.

85

2019/20 FORWARD PLAN
1

Page 11

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

5 February 2020

The Committee considered the Forward Plan and noted that there were no new
items for this Committee’s consideration at this time.

86

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT REVIEW 2019/20
The Report of the Committee Chair provided an update and proposed
improvements to the quarterly performance update and financial healthcheck
report.
The Chair invited the Executive Director, Finance to provide an overview to the
Committee of the review which had been undertaken and the outputs contained
within the report.
The Executive Director reported that following a meeting with members of the
Quarterly Performance Report working group drafts of potential content for an
executive summary to the QPR report had been circulated, and it was agreed that
this should include data from the previous 8 quarters such that trends could be
identified.
The Committee sought and received assurance that:
 the detailed report would still be provided to the Committee together with
the proposed executive summary;
 there would be commentary against each metric in the executive summary
which would address any key issues and /or variances shown.
RESOLVED that:
Corporate Scrutiny Committee endorsed the proposed
improvements; and
A recommendation be made to Cabinet that the changes be
approved for implementation in the Quarterly Performance from
Quarter 4 2019/20
(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor M Summers)

87

QUARTER THREE 2019/20 PERFORMANCE REPORT
The Report of the Leader of the Council which provided the Committee with a
performance update and financial healthcheck was received.
The Leader of the Council introduced the report and updated the committee on a
correction to the RAG status of the Corporate Debt Strategy metric from red to
green.
The Leader of the Council apologised to members for the delay in circulating the
Government response which he had received to the joint letter from himself and
the Leader of the Opposition on universal credit. This response had now been
circulated to all members.

2

Page 12

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

5 February 2020

The Executive Director, Finance highlighted the following items from the Quarterly
Performance Report:
 income collection rates (Council tax, business rates and rents) were on
target;
 the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account had a favourable
variance against budget; and
 that the capital programme indicated that projects to the value of c.£13m
would be deferred to 2020/21.
The Committee sought and received clarifications in the following areas:
 How changes from the Fairer Funding Review could affect Tamworth. The
Leader responded that he had written to the local MP on this point and the
damage it would do to the Council’s long term financial forecast and would
be having a meeting shortly with him. The Leader had also responded to
the Government’s consultation on the budget. The Leader agreed to
feedback to members once responses had been received;
 The ICT Strategy and how the IT strategy would address the financial
issue and workstreams. The Executive Director Organisation responded
that accelerating the roll out of IT solutions could deliver savings and also
contract changes (telephony and printers) were expected to deliver
savings. In terms of whether disaster recovery should also be a
workstream within the strategy, the Executive Director highlighted all the
activities already in train in this regard, including business continuity plans
for every critical service, and involvement in Staffordshire wide business
continuity activities.
 Plans associated with the corporate investment strategy and when further
capital would be invested. The Executive Director, Finance reported that
£3.8m of the approximately £12m had been invested and was yielding
approximately 4%, and that the plan was that a further £4m would be
invested by March 2020, and depending on the funds invested in would be
expected to deliver around 4%. This was expected to be followed by a
further investment post March 2020 of approximately £4m. The Executive
Director, Finance reported that these were long term investments and that
whilst the fund value may go up or down, the objective was to deliver an
income to support the Council’s delivery of services. The Executive
Director confirmed that the yield figure when reported to the Committee
was calculated against the original purchase price into the fund (and not
the current value of the fund). It was also reported that the mitigation
measures which were reported were for a period of 5 years and were as a
result of accounting standard changes. Following the five year period
revenue losses or gains after that 5 year period would need to be reported
within year.
The Committee thanked the Executive Director, Finance and the Knowledge,
Performance and Insight Co-ordinater for the report and for their helpful
explanations to the Committee.
RESOLVED that the Quarter Three 2019/20 Performance Report be endorsed.
(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor R Claymore)
3

Page 13

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

88

5 February 2020

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN
The Corporate Scrutiny Committee Work Plan was considered.
Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan
Work Plan 2019 – 2020
TARGET
MEETING
DATE

SUBJECT

5th February
2020
5th February
2020
5th February
2020

QPR Q3 2019/20 Report

25th March
2020
25th March
2020
25th March
2020

Member Training update

May 2020
June 2020
June 2020

Parking Toolkit review
Gungate Masterplan
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme
2021 onwards - revisit
Review of Legal Services (post
implementation)
The Assembly Rooms – review of
project
Housing Repairs & Investment
Contract Review
Solway Trading Company Update (2x
per year)
Market tender progress Update
Asset Management update

July 2020
August 2020
TBC
TBC
TBC
Quarter 4 2020

Review of senior management
restructuring (update)
Working group report on QPR Report
Executive Summary

MEETING WHEN
ITEM ADDED TO
WORK PLAN
Regular item

June 2019

June 2019

Member Support Working group – sub
group on Member Communications
Review of Cabinet decisions over
previous 12 month period

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings
25th March 2020 (moved from 12th March)

4

Page 14

October 2019
January 2020
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
December 2019
August 2019
December 2019

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

89

5 February 2020

REVIEW OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURING
The Chair welcomed the Chief Executive and the Executive Director,
Organisation to the Meeting.
The Report of the Chief Executive on the Senior Management Review was
received by the Committee and the Chief Executive highlighted the following
points:






The key drivers for the review were to ensure that the organisation
focussed on the ability to deliver the corporate plan and strategic
objectives and deliver the savings target;
To become more agile and responsive;
7 executive posts and 36 other senior management posts were within the
scope of the review and following the review the revised structure
comprised 4 and 7 posts respectively;
Implementation was undertaken in 2 phases to offer operational stability;
Outcomes included; savings delivery of £380k per year split across HRA
and General Fund; the removal of silo working by removing Directorates,
aligned functional teams, aligned the organisation to deliver its corporate
plan and increased trust, cooperation and accountability within teams.

Members reported that they were supportive of the new structure which it was
considered were more dynamic, and that there was more engagement by the
senior management team with members.
Members further reported that it felt like it had succeeded as a review, and that it
had been good for members to be included in the process and that the review
had been done in appropriate stages. It was reported that the interim appointment
had been the right combination and had worked really well. However, it would still
be important to ensure that no bunkers emerged over time. The structure was
now right and it appeared the right people were in the right roles and it would be
important to keep the lines open. It would be important to keep the ethos going as
new staff were brought in. If the council could do that it was reported that this
whole exercise would have been very worthwhile and would continue to keep the
council going in the right direction.
The Executive Director, Organisation explained how the co-location of the
leadership team, on the 8th floor, supported new staff in their early days and
helped support the cohesiveness of the team.
The Chief Executive reported that the pace at which local government was
moving meant that there was continuous challenge which brought out new skills
in the senior management team. It was also reported that the role of internal audit
continued to evolve to support the organisation better.
The Committee discussed:
 The culture of the organisation
 Risks associated with reduced senior management capacity
5

Page 15

Corporate Scrutiny Committee





5 February 2020

The stability of staff following the restructure and succession
planning
The vision for the senior management structure and the extent that
it had been delivered and was working as hoped
The benefit of bringing electoral accountability into the Chief
Executive’s remit

The Committee thanked and congratulated the Chief Executive and the Executive
Director, Organisation for their report and presentation and for delivering the
organisational review.

Chair

6

Page 16

Agenda Item 8

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 25 MARCH 2020

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ORGANISATION
REPORT ON MEMBER INDUCTION, TRAINING AND MEMBERSZONE

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None
PURPOSE
This report provides an update to the Committee on:
 Feedback received from the Member Induction programme delivered at the
start of this municipal year as agreed by the Committee at its meeting in July
2019;
 The Member Training programme which has been delivered during this
municipal year, as well as feedback from Members on this training;
 Feedback on Members’ utilisation and views on MembersZone.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is requested to consider the following, and where appropriate make
recommendations to Cabinet:
1. The member induction programme for 2020/21 to be reviewed, updated
and implemented, noting that:
1.1 the schedule of induction events should be made available to all
election agents as early as possible before election day;
1.2 any initial ICT training of newly elected members should be undertaken
on a 1-2-1 basis;
1.3 the importance of the induction training should be emphasised to all
new members; in particular Safeguarding and Data Protection / FoI.
2. The member training programme for 2020/21 to be reviewed, updated and
implemented, noting that:
2.1 the schedule of training sessions should be made available to all
councillors prior to the start of the municipal year, or as soon as
reasonably practicable thereafter;
2.2 options to consider training sessions at alternative times of the day (day
time / twilight / full day conferences) were not generally supported by
the members who responded to the survey;
2.3 shorter and interactive training sessions were recommended where
practical;
2.4 refresher IT training is available to all interested members and
members should be encouraged to contact ICT support to arrange 1-21 support;
2.5 training relevant to specific committee members such as planning,
licensing and audit & governance should be scheduled to support
members’ attendance prior to members making decisions at such

Page 17
1

3.

4.

5.
6.
7.

committees;
2.6 the use of online training as an alternative to face-to-face training was
not generally not supported;
2.7 members who responded considered that the training programme
covered the correct topics, although some members requested more
formal training, perhaps utilising external training bodies;
2.8 all members who responded to the question, felt that the training
programme had helped them understand their role and responsibilities
as a Councillor and the work of the Council.
All members to be reminded of the importance of attending training
sessions and in particular members of the regulatory committees are
reminded of the importance in attending scheduled regulatory training
sessions.
Consideration be given as to whether to recommend that member training
records of training sessions attended be published on the Council website
on the grounds of openness and transparency.
New members to be actively encouraged to attend the Local Government
Association regional event for new councillors.
New members will be invited to a meeting with the Leader of the Council
and the Mayor.
Members to be encouraged to access and use MembersZone regularly
which will continue to be updated and the content widened.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
During 2018/19 the Committee set up working groups to address support for new and
existing members, which split into three sub-groups covering:




Member induction
ICT Support to members; and
Information exchange with members

The Member induction and ICT support for members sub-group completed their work
and made recommendations to Cabinet in February and April 2019. Following this,
arrangements were rolled out at the start of the 2019/2020 municipal year to ensure
a comprehensive induction programme was available to the 10 newly elected / reelected members as well as ensuring that arrangements were in place to roll out
appropriate ICT resources to those newly elected members who required it. A report
to this Committee was received on these matters in July 2019 and an action to
provide feedback from the newly elected / re-elected Councillors on their induction
programme was agreed, and which this report addresses.
The work of the information exchange with members sub-group was deferred whilst
further time was given to the implementation of MembersZone and to allow
consideration of members’ views on this implementation. It is intended that this subgroup would then determine their next steps, and any other areas where further work
may be required. As a separate piece of work, a small project team has been formed
comprising Councillors Dr S Peaple and S Goodall, the Executive Director
Organisation and the Executive Director Communities to agree the further work
required in order to further improve the dissemination of information to ward
members. This project team has met and the plan for this work is ongoing and has
been fully consulted on and agreed by the team.

Page 18
2

1

Feedback on Member Induction

An interim update on member induction was received by this Committee in July 2019.
A survey was issued to the 10 newly / re-elected Councillors in August 2019 and
responses were received from only 5 members.
The results from the survey responses can be summarised as follows:
No.
1

Question area
Communication with candidates re
Induction programme dates preelection

2

Initial meetings with new councillors
2a
2b

Key Council Officers
Leader & Mayor

3a

Induction training (face-to-face)
Attendance levels

3b
3c

Welcome – Vision overview session
IT Training sessions

3d

LGA Event – Hitting the Ground
Running (Birmingham)
Data Protection and FoI training
session
Safeguarding training sessions
Member Code of Conduct
Standards
Induction training (online)

3

3e
3f
3g
4
4a

Completion levels

4b
4c
4d
4e
5

Data Protection online
Freedom of Information
Cyber-Security
Safeguarding
Provision of IT Devices

6
7

IT Support
Tour of Marmion House

Results RAG Notes / Actions
Ensure for 2020
that Induction dates
are made available
to all candidates

A majority of
responders were
not introduced to
the Leader or Major
High attendance
levels amongst 5
responders to
survey
Positive feedback
Implement 1-2-1 IT
training
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback

Mixed completion
rates for online
training amongst
responders
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
A responder
reported a problem
with the IT device
issued
Positive feedback
More time to be
spent on 2nd Floor

Page 19
3

8
9

MembersZone
Overall view of Induction
programme

10

Amount of formal training provided

Positive feedback
Positive, although
acknowledgement
that some issues
need to be learnt
over time.
No additional
formal training
requested

All feedback will be taken into account in preparing the 2020/21 Member Induction
programme, as set out in the recommendations above.
2.

Member Training Programme

A detailed Member Training programme was launched at the start of the municipal
year and regularly updated with new events throughout the municipal year. The
content of the programme was designed by looking at previous training provided in
the Council, as well as the best practice which was followed at other councils. All
training was open to all members, although in some areas the training was
highlighted as essential for members of some committees (such as planning,
licensing and audit and governance).
All members had access to the latest version of the Training programme through
MembersZone.
The 2019/20 programme covered the following topics:
1. Planning training (essential for Planning Committee members however open
to all other members)
2. Licensing training (essential for Licensing Committee members however open
for all other members)
3. Safeguarding training (essential for all members)
4. Members Code of Conduct training (essential for all members)
5. Briefing for Councillors on Health Service Commissioning (recommended for
all Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee members and open to all
members)
6. Chief Executive Office Briefing (meet the team) (essential for all members)
7. Staffordshire Police Briefing (open to all members)
8. Keeping Safe – Health & Safety and Lone Working and HAT Policy
Awareness (essential for all members)
9. Organisation (meet the team) (recommended for all members)
10. Equality & Diversity training (recommended for all members)
11. Finance (meet the team) (essential for all members)
12. Primary Care Briefing (open to all members)
13. Audit & Governance Committee training (essential for all members however
open to all other members)
14. Communities (meet the team) (recommended for all members)
15. Treasury Management (Link Asset Services) (open to all members)
16. Members Seminar on Housing Repairs Contract (open to all members)
17. Capital Strategy (Link Asset Services) (open to all members)
Some members have also attended external training, including scrutiny training and
training provided by the Local Government Association to newly elected Councillors.

Page 20
4

In February 2020, all members were invited to complete a Survey regarding their
experience of the Member Training programme and responses were received from
13 (out of a possible 30) members.
The results from the survey responses can be summarised as follows:
No.
1

Question area
Communication regarding dates in
the Training Programme (before the
start of the municipal year)

2

Members’ awareness that the
Training programme is on
MembersZone

3
3a

3b
3c
3d
3e
3f
3g
3h
3i

Member training (face-to-face)
Attendance levels

3j

Planning Committee
Licensing training
Safeguarding training
Member Code of Conduct
Health Service Commissioning
Chief Executive Office briefing
Staffordshire Police Briefing
Keeping Safe – health & safety and
Lone Working and HAT Policy
Organisation briefing

3k
3l
3m

Equality & Diversity
Finance
Primary care Briefing

3n

Audit & Governance training

3o
3p
3q

Communities
Treasury management
Members Seminar on Housing
Repairs Contract
Capital Strategy

3r

Results RAG Notes / Actions
A majority of
responders
requested details of
training dates
before the start of
the municipal year
Members are
aware. More
information below
regarding
MembersZone
The attendance
levels at training
sessions varied.
The maximum
attendance level
was just over 50%,
and generally
attendance
averaged around
35% of the
members
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Limited numbers
fed back on this
Limited numbers
fed back on this
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Limited numbers
fed back on this
No feedback
provided
Positive feedback
Positive feedback
Limited numbers
fed back on this
Limited numbers

Page 21
5

4

Current training programme
coverage

5

Views on utilisation of online training
methods

6

Effectiveness of training programme
in understanding roles &
responsibilities

7

Amount of formal training

6

Views on Refresher IT training

7

Timing of Member Training sessions

8

Publication of Councillor attendance
at training courses

fed back on this
Over 90% positive
response
75% preferred face
– to face.
However, there
was support for
online to be an
option for all
training provided
All responders felt
the training
programme had
helped the
understanding of
the councillor role
Mixed almost 50/50
response to
whether more
formal training
required. Possibly
use LGA courses
more.
50/50 response on
whether more
refresher IT training
wanted.
Recommend
inviting members to
contact ICT.
Most responders
appeared to prefer
6pm start to the
various other
options proposed;
twilight (4-6pm) day
time, full day
conferences
Mixed response
(see details below)

Records of member attendance at the training sessions are retained by the HR team.
Members were asked for their view on publishing members’ attendance at training
sessions on the Council’s website and the response was fairly evenly split (55% in
favour, 45% against publication). The reasons in support of publication can be
summarised as to demonstrate a member’s commitment to learning and taking
responsibility for own training as well as promoting openness and transparency. The
reasons for not publishing include the fact that external training (employment related)
would not be taken into account, that it may give the appearance that the member is
not doing their job and this is not the case, and that training is voluntary.
Consideration of publication of councillor training records is on the Health &
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee work plan.

Page 22
6

Members were also asked to provide their views on the training sessions provided
and comments made included:
 Keeping training sessions shorter and interactive where possible. The use of
case studies / workshops was appreciated in some training sessions;
 There appeared to be a general preference to keep training face to face in
order that questions can be asked and answered during the training;
 Access to the slides and presentation materials was appreciated.
3.

MembersZone

MembersZone was developed as an area on the Council’s intranet, where members
could access relevant information in one single place, and therefore simplify
communication channels for general information.
MembersZone has the following pages:








Home – Welcome to MembersZone
Members Bulletin - includes Mayoral Diary and Planning Applications, Starters
and Leavers
Contacts -includes key Officer contact details and Organisational Charts
FAQs
Induction section
Training section – which includes the updated Member Training programme,
together with copies of presentations used (where available)
Useful Documents – includes certain key policies, guidance, ward profiles and
forms which members may need to claim mileage and declare gifts and
hospitality.

In addition MembersZone has Quick Links to other key areas for members such as
the Council Meetings agenda and Reports (ModGov), InfoZone for all other Council
relevant information, the Safeguarding area (with all relevant contact details for any
safeguarding concerns) and the Council’s external website. A review of the
appropriateness of these Quick Links will be undertaken following the feedback
received.
Data has been collected on the number of hits on each area of MembersZone since
its launch in June 2019, so that it is possible to understand those areas of most
interest. The data collected includes all hits by Councillors as well as by Officers
(who can also access this area). The data is shown in Figure 1 below:

Page 23
7

Figure 1.
As can be seen from the above data, the home page (where most users will initially
navigate to), the Members Bulletin and the Training pages appear to be the most
popular. It is also worth noting that the use of MembersZone has declined since it
was first launched.
In addition, in the Member Training survey, members were specifically asked about
their use of MembersZone. As can be seen from Figure 2 below, the use made by
the individual members who responded (please note 13 members responded) is
quite variable, although most members have made some use. It is unknown how
much use is made of MembersZone by those members who did not respond to the
Survey.

Figure 2.

Page 24
8

Members also provided comments on those areas they found most useful and areas
of potential future development. These are summarised below:





Some members commented that they did not use MembersZone due to the
fact that it required them to access it via a Council device and/or via using
remote access software;
Some members found all areas useful and reported that they used it to keep
up to date with meeting dates, committee meeting details, media releases,
planning applications, mayoral duties and licensing applications;
Some members reported that they would like it to include; policy
documentation, details of planning applications, Licensing applications and an
updated Officer contact list;
One member requested the return of e bulletin.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED
In terms of the timing of Member Training and the publication of Member Training
records, the survey sought member’s views and these have been taken into account
in the recommendations made.
RESOURCE AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Existing staff resources from Democratic Services, HR, ICT PR, Communications
and across the Council have been utilised to support the implementation of the
member induction programme, training programme and roll-out and updating of
MembersZone and the additional ICT support to members.
Consideration may need to be given to the member training budget for 2020/21. The
current budget for member training in 2019/20 is £3k, and £3.3k has been
spent/committed (utilising other underspent budgets within the Training &
Development cost centre).The budget for the next municipal year is £3k.
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND
None.
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
The induction and training programme has been adapted in terms of time, place of
delivery and method of delivery as well as the officers being able to provide
additional support to members with specific needs.
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None
REPORT AUTHOR
Jo Hutchison, Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer
Ani Goodwin, Executive Director Organisation
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Report to Cabinet, 26 September 2019

Page 25
9

Report to Corporate Scrutiny Committee, 10 July 2019
Report to Cabinet, 25 February 2019
Report to Cabinet, 11 April 2019
APPENDICES
None.

Page 26
10

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Meeting
Date

Agenda Title

Council

Corporate Vision, Priorities
Plan, Budget & Medium
Term Financial Strategy
2020/21

27 Recommendations approved as per minutes.

Write Offs 01 April 2019 to
31 December 2019

Endorsed the amount of debt written off for the PH Assets and
period of 1st April 2019 to 31 December 2019
Finance

Utilities Supply 2020

1 Endorsed this contract brief for the
procurement of Water and Sewerage services

25.02.2020

Page 27

Cabinet
20.02.2020
Cabinet
20.02.2020

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

3 Confirmed the approach to discuss options
with suppliers to address the climate emergency

Leader

PH Assets and
Finance

Officer
Delegation
(if relevant)
CMT in
Consultation
with the Leader
and Cabinet

ED Finance

Agenda Item 10

2 Delegated Authority to the Executive Director
Finance to approve future renewals of the utility
services of Water, Electricity and Gas and
appoint the successful suppliers

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Cabinet

Quarter Three 2019/20
Performance Report

Endorsed the contents of this report

Leader

Start Up Business Grant
Review

 The impact, outcomes and success of the
grant scheme over the past 3 years was noted.

PH Heritage
and Growth

20.02.2020
Cabinet
06.02.2020

Page 28

The principles and eligibility criteria of the
Start-up Business Grant for the next 3 years
was approved
Cabinet makes final decisions on all Start Up
Business Grants applied for on a quarterly
basis.
An annual budget to be created within the
Economic Development and Regeneration
service area, GS0402 34537, by way of an
annual virement of £20,000 from the Voluntary
and Community sector budget, GS1002 57025
per annum subject to annual budget
agreements and relevant reviews up until 31st
March 2023.
 The impact and need for the business grants
scheme continues to be reviewed on an annual

2

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Cabinet

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

basis through the business planning process
and key performance indicators
Cabinet
22.01.2020

Development of site in
Caledonian for Council
Housing

Page 29

1 Commencement of formal consultation with PH Housing
local residents
services and
Communities
2 That authority be delegated to the Executive
Director, Communities in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Housing Services and
Communities to determine the most viable
option to take forward as a scheme
3 Preparation of detailed plans and submission
for planning consent. Subject to Planning
Consent being granted and subject to approval
of the Capital programme by Council in
February 2020.
4 Procurement of a contractor for the delivery of
the development using the most appropriate
form of procurement
5 It is recommended that authority be delegated
to the Executive Director, Communities in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for
Housing Services and Communities to award

3

ED Communities
in Consultation
with the PH for
housing services
and
Communities.

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

contracts for the development of the preferred
scheme
6 Approved one further Confidential
recommendation contained within the
report
Cabinet

Page 30

22.01.2020

Virement of Housing
Revenue Account Capital
Budgets

Reduction of the of the following budgets PH Housing
totalling £1,500,000:services and
a) Other
Regeneration
[CR7003] Communities
£900,000
b) Structural [CR2001] £100,000
c) Heating [CR2003] £150,000
d) Neighbourhood
Regeneration
[CR2007] £250,000
e) Rewiring [CR2009] £100,000
Increase the Housing Acquisitions Budget
[CR7004] by £1,500,000 from the under spends
identified above.

Cabinet
22.01.2020

Wild About Tamworth
Service

1 Cabinet approved the decision to tender the
Wild About Tamworth service for a further five
years (plus the option for one further year, if

4

PH Culture &
Operational
Services

AD Operations
and leisure in
Consultation
with the PH for

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

required)

Culture and
Operational
Services

2 Cabinet delegated authority to award the
contract
for
the
most
economically
advantageous contractor to the Assistant
Director Operations and Leisure in consultation
with
the Portfolio Holder for Culture &
Operational Services
Cabinet

Page 31

Provision of Fireworks

1 Cabinet approved the decision to tender for PH Culture &
fireworks for a five year period
Operational
Services
2 Cabinet delegated authority to the Assistant
Director, Operations and Leisure in conjunction
with the Theatre, Artistic and Events Manager to
enter into contract with the most advantageous
tenderer as detailed within the report

Lichfield District Council
Preferred Options
Consultation Response

1 Cabinet noted the policies and proposals
contained within the Lichfield District Council
Local Plan Review 2018-2040 - Preferred
Options document; and

22.01 2020

Cabinet
22.01.2020

2 Cabinet approved the comments to be made
to Lichfield District Council in response to the
consultation as set out in Appendix 1.

5

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

PH Regulatory
and
Community
Safety

AD Operations
and Leisure in
conjunction with
the Theatre,
Artistic and
Events Manager

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Cabinet

Business Rates Income
Forecast 2020/21

1 Approved the Business Rates income forecast
for 2020/2021 and Subsequent NNDR1 form for
submission to MHCLG by 31 January 2020, in
line with the scheme of delegation.
2 Should material amendments be required to
the forecast NNDR1, Cabinet authorised the
Executive Director Finance, in consultation with
the Leader of the Council, to make such
required amendments as necessary; and
3 Noted discretionary relief granted to qualifying
bodies in line with the existing policy

PH Assets and
Finance

ED Finance in
consultation with
the Leader

Draft Budget & Medium
Term Financial Strategy
2020/21

1 Cabinet approved the draft package of budget
proposals including the proposed policy
changes (as detailed at Appendix B);and

Leader

22.01.2020

Page 32
Cabinet

22.01.2020

Cabinet

2 As required by the Constitution of the Council,
the Joint Scrutiny Committee (Budget) on 29th
January 2020 is requested to consider the
budget proposals contained within this report

Grants Report Quarter 3
2019-20

The grant applications agreed can be found in
the minutes.

6

PH Housing
Services and

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

19.12.2019
Cabinet
19.12.2019

Executive
Member

Communities
Update on Housing Repairs
& Investment Contract

1 endorsed the contents of this update in
relation to the delivery of the Housing Repairs &
Investment Contracts

PH Housing
Services and
Communities

Page 33

2 endorsed the contents of this update in
relation to the establishment of an in-house call
centre associated with the delivery of the
Housing Repairs and Investment works
3 approved interim arrangements for the
provision of the out of hours call centre for a
period of twelve months
Cabinet
19.12.2019

Joint Waste Service Review

1 Approved the approach taken during the
fundamental review of the Joint Waste Service
and its key findings
2 Approved the proposal to continue providing
the Joint Waste Service using the current in
house arrangements and delay any decision on
the future provision of the service until the
implications of the Government's Resources
and Waste Strategy were fully known.

7

PH Culture &
Operational
Services

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

3 Approved the proposals to undertake an
appraisal of options for the future disposal of dry
recyclate and identify measures to address the
issue of over reliance on agency staff
Cabinet
19.12.2019

ASB Crime and Policing Act
2014 Public Space
Protection Orders

Page 34

1 Approved the progression to public
consultation
and
submission
to
the
Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny
Committee, thereafter for a PSPO at Access
Road to Dosthill Hall, Dosthill Park to be
renewed and updated;

PH Regulatory
and
Community
Safety

2 Rejected, pending further monitoring and
evidence, that the proposals for suggested
PSPO (Gating Order) at Carisbrooke, Glascote
Cabinet

19.12.2019

Provision of Legal Services
to Tamworth Borough
Council

1 Approved the establishment of a shared legal
service with South Staffordshire District Council
and Lichfield District Council, with South
Staffordshire District Council being the ‘Host
Authority’;
2 Delegated authority to the Cabinet Member
and the Executive Director Organisation to
approve the Strategic Partnership Agreement;

8

PH Assets and
Finance

PH Assets and
Finance & ED
Organisation
and Relevant
budget holder

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

3 Requested staffing implications associated
with this report be considered by Appointments
& Staffing Committee and
4 Delegated authority to the relevant budget
holder to vire the identified budgetary amounts
as detailed in Appendix 4
Cabinet

Page 35

19.12.2019

Landlord Regulation Councils Stock retained
services

 highlighted to Cabinet the Regulatory Social
PH Housing
Housing (RSH) requirements in relation to the
services and
Council Stock retained service; as detailed in
Communities
the regulator’s annual consumer report shown
here
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/con
sumer-regulation-review-2018-to-2019
Proposed Tenants’ annual performance report
(2018/19) evidencing compliance and
opportunities for continual improvement for the
Council’s stock retained service
Updated Cabinet with regard to changing
requirements of the RSH around participating
with the Local Authority rent data collection pilot
on a voluntary basis in 2019/20.

9

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Council

Adoption of the Proposed
Licensing Policy 2020-2023

10.12.2019

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

1 Council approved and adopted the final
amended version of Tamworth's Statement of
Licensing Policy 2020 – 2023 and Cumulative
Impact Assessment 2020 – 2023

Executive
Member

PH Regulatory
and
Community
Safety

2 To undertake an initial review by Tamworth
Borough Council Officers, as soon as
possible,
of
the
cumulative
impact
assessment, within the guidelines of policy

Page 36

Council

10.12.2019
Council

Treasury Management
Strategy Statement and
Annual Investment Strategy
Mid-year Review Report
2019/20

that Council approved the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy Mid-year Review Report
2019/20

Local Council Tax Reduction
Scheme 2020/21 onwards

Council considered and endorsed that the base PH Assets and
scheme goes forward with the following:
Finance

10.12.2019

Cabinet

PH Assets and
Finance

That the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme
for working age customers for 2020/21 will
continue to be aligned to Applicable Amounts
with those of Housing Benefit
Council Taxbase 2020/21

That the calculation of the Council Tax Base for

10

PH Assets and

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

28.11.2019

the year 2020/21 to be 22,367 (2019/20 –
21,761).

Finance

Approved the transfer of the reserves, as
detailed in Appendix A, of £47,873.22 to
General Fund Balances and £Nil to Housing
Revenue Account Balances (HRA);

PH Assets and
Finance

Cabinet
28.11.2019

Review of Temporary
Reserves, Retained Funds
and Provisions

Page 37

Noted the reserves to be spent in 2019/20 and
2020/21 which will otherwise be returned to
balances; and
Noted the current levels of reserves remaining
Cabinet
28.11.2019

Draft Base Budget Forecasts
2020/21 to 2024/25

the technical adjustments and re-priced base Leader
budget figures for 2020/21 & indicative budgets
to 2024/25 be approved (as attached at
Appendix B, C, D, E, F, G & H);
consideration be given to the proposed Policy
Changes and Capital Programmes, as detailed
within the report;
Consideration be given to the planned changes
to Council Tax and Housing Rent for 2020/21,
as detailed within the report; and

11

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

In compliance with the Constitution of the
Council, the Leader’s Budget Workshop be
asked to consider the budget proposals
contained within this report
Cabinet
28.11.2019

Quarter Two 2019/20
Performance Report

Cabinet endorsed the contents of this report;
and

Leader

Page 38

the General Fund budgets be revised to reflect
the projected outturn underspend as at period 6
releasing funding of £1.756m to be returned to
balances
Council
19.11.2019

Allocations Policy

1 Approve the Council’s Allocations Policy 2020, PH Housing
shown at annex one with the following
services and
clarifications
Communities
A That the thresholds for income per
households range from £30k(pa) up to a
maximum of £60k (pa). This will be subject to a
comprehensive household income and
expenditure assessment to ensure no
household suffers exceptional financial hardship
& is deemed ineligible as a result
B That the local connection be usually 2 years
as set out in the proposed policy; but

12

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

circumstances will be considered to ensure
exemptions and officer discretion is applied to
avoid any household being significantly
disadvantaged where there is current local
connection with Tamworth and this period
needs extending.

Page 39

C The impact of the policy (specifically
thresholds and local connection) will be
reviewed within 12 months and
recommendations reported back to Cabinet on
policy developments going forward, in 2021
2 Supported Health & Well-being scrutiny
committee observations shown at annex three
which have been incorporated into the revised
policy
3 Endorsed the Equality Impact Assessment set
out at annex six
4 Acknowledged feedback from the detailed
consultation exercise that ran from 7th May 2019
– Friday 30th August 2019, full details set out in
annex seven
5 Approved the implementation action plan,

13

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

should Council approve the final scheme,
highlighted in the report and shown at annex
eight
Council
19.11.2019

Page 40

To consider the following
motion, notice of which has
been duly given in
accordance with Procedure
Rule No. 4.12.1 by
Councillors R Ford, J Oates,
S Goodall, B Price and R
Pritchard

1 Tamworth Borough Council declares a
Climate Emergency’ that requires urgent action;
2 Make the Council’s activities net-zero carbon
by 2050 with aspiration to achieve by 2030
should the Council be financially able to do so
3 Ensure that political and chief officers
leadership teams embed this work in all areas
and take responsibility for reducing where
practicable, as rapidly as possible, the carbon
emissions resulting from the council’s activities;
4 The Council (including the Executive and
Scrutiny Committee) consider the impact of
climate change and the environment when
adopting and reviewing Council policies and
strategies;
5 Receive a report to the relevant scrutiny
committee regarding the level of investment in

14

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

the fossil fuel industry that any of our
investments have;
6 Ensure that all reports in preparation for the
2021/2022 budget cycle and investment
strategy will take into account the actions the
Council will take to address this emergency

Page 41

7 Ask council to note there will be an as yet
undefined financial impact to any plan to
achieve net zero carbon operations
Cabinet

Budget Consultation 2020/21

07.11.2019

Cabinet
17.10.2019

Endorsed the report and,

Deputy Leader

Took in to account the findings, along with other
sources of information, when setting the
2020/21 Budget
Future High Streets Fund

1 Cabinet acknowledged grant funding due from
Government up to the value of £150,000
2 Cabinet approved the creation of additional
budget under account GS0402 32050 of
£150,000 based on grant income from
Government, to be ring fenced solely for the use
of the Future High Streets Fund project in

15

PH heritage
and Growth

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

PH Assets and
Finance

ED Finance in
Consultation
with the Leader
and the Chief
Exec

financial year 2019/2020 and any underspend
be retained for use in financial year 2020/2021
3 Authority was given to procure and appoint
such specialists as is deemed necessary to a
produce a fully compliant business case

Page 42

4 Cabinet endorsed changes to the Economic
Development and Regeneration business plan
priorities
5 Cabinet endorsed all activity undertaken to
date
6 Cabinet endorsed the outline scope of the
Business Case projects and acknowledged this
may change during the project
7 Cabinet endorsed future activity
Cabinet
17.10.2019

Business Rates Pooling
2020/21

A Approved the principle of the Staffordshire
pool remaining in place for 2020/21
B Delegated approval for the Executive Director
Finance (Section 151 Officer), in consultation
with the Leader of the Council and the Chief

16

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

PH Housing
Services and
Communities

ED Communities
in Consultation
with PH Housing
Services and
Communities
and PH Assets
and Finance

Executive, to agree, in conjunction with the
other authorities of the proposed pool, the detail
of the 2020/21 application
Cabinet
26.09.2019

Grant Report Quarter 2
2019-20

The grant applications agreed can be found in
the minutes.

Page 43

 Cabinet delegated authority to the Executive
Director of Communities in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Housing Services and
Communities and the Portfolio Holder for Assets
and Finance to manage the Festive Grant
Applications and agree Festive Grant awards
including any variations during the term of the
grants
Cabinet
26.09.2019

Cabinet
26.09.2019

Arts and Events
Organisational Review
(including Tamworth
Assembly Rooms and
Conferencing Facilities)

Approved the request to release £61,910 from
the contingency budget to enable the
implementation of the new Arts and Events
structure

Local Council Tax Reduction
Scheme 2020/21
Consultation

The need to review the Council’s Local Council PH Assets and
Tax Reduction Scheme
Finance

17

PH for Culture
and
Operational
Services

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Detailed cost forecasting and scheme principles
explained in the report were considered and
endorsed
That Corporate Scrutiny Committee are asked
to review the proposals and options contained
within this report with the aim to finalise a new
scheme for Public consultation in 2020

Page 44

Council
10.09.2019

Tamworth Parliamentary
Constituency - Review of
Polling Districts, Polling
Places and Polling Stations

1 Adopted the polling districts and polling places
as listed in Appendix A to this report

Chief Exec

2 Settled the polling place as the polling district
plus any adjacent polling district(s)
3 Settled the polling place as the polling district
plus any adjacent polling district(s)

Council
10.09.2019

Annual Report on the
Treasury Management
Service and Actual
Prudential Indicators
2018/19

Approved the actual 2018/19 Prudential and
Treasury Indicators within the report and shown
at Appendix 1; and
Accepted the Annual Treasury Management
Report for 2018/19

18

PH Assets and
Finance

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Cabinet

Modern Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement
2018/19

Approved the Council’s Modern Slavery and PH Regulatory
Human Trafficking Statement 2018/19 endorsed and
by the Audit and Governance Committee
Community
Safety

Quarter One 2019/20
Performance Report

Endorsed the contents of the report, and

Write Offs

1 Endorsed the amount of debt written off for
the period of 1st April 2019 to 30th June 2019 –
summarised in Appendix A-D; and

05.09.2019

Cabinet
05.09.2019

Page 45
Cabinet
15.08.2019

Executive
Member

Leader

Approved the virement of £1,000,000 from
CR7003 Regeneration General to CR7004 HRA
Acquisitions to fund the purchase of properties
on the open market and maximise the use of 14-1 right to buy (RTB) receipts
PH Assets and
Finance

2 approved the write off of irrecoverable debt for
Business Rates of £146,711.50 – detailed at
Appendix E
Cabinet
15.08.2019

Procurement Service and
Strategy Update

Noted the contents of the report; and Approved
the future approach for the Procurement team

19

PH Assets and
Finance

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Cabinet

That the proposed process for the General Fund Leader
and Housing Revenue Account Budget and
Medium Term Financial Planning Process for
2020/21 was adopted

15.08.2019

Cabinet
15.08.2019

Budget and Medium Term
Financial Planning Process
2020/21

Review Of Cleaning Services Approved the development of a retained and
restructured in-house service

Executive
Member

PH Assets and
Finance

Page 46

Approved the submission of Policy Changes, as
part of the budget setting process for 2020/21,
to support the restructured service
Approved implementation of the restructured
service subject to budget being approved
through the 2020/21 budget setting process
Delegated authority to the Head of Paid Service
to implement staff changes arising from the
restructure
Council
16.07.2019

Confirmation of the
appointment of the
Monitoring Officer

Approved the appointment of Rebecca Neill to
the role of Monitoring Officer upon her
commencement with the authority as Head of
Audit & Governance on the 19th August 2019.

20

Chief Exec

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Head of Paid
Services

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Council

Appointment of a deputy
electoral registration officer

Approved the appointment of the senior
elections officer, Mrs Bernadette Flanagan, to
the role of Deputy Electoral Registration Officer
under section 52(2) of the representation of
People Act 1983, having the same duties as the
Electoral Registration Officer.

Chief Exec

Pay Policy Statement 2019

Approved the pay policy statement 2019 for
adoption and publication, in line with the
localism Act 2011

Leader

CCTV - Service Review
setting out future delivery
options

The eight recommendations in the report be
approved with an amendment to reflect the
recommendations of the Infrastructure Safety
and Growth Scrutiny Committee

Leader

Grants to Voluntary
Organisations (Small Grants
Scheme) Quarter 1 2019-20

The grant applications agreed can be found in
the minutes.

PH Housing
Services and
Communities

Sports Grants Scheme
Quarter 1 2019-20

The grant applications agreed can be found in
the minutes.

PH Culture and
Operational
Services

Arts Grant Scheme Quarter

No applications for Art Grants were received

PH Culture and
Operational

16.07.2019

Council

Page 47

16.07.2019
Cabinet
02.07.2019

Cabinet
02.07.2019
Cabinet
02.07.2019
Cabinet

21

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

02.07.2019

1 2019-20

this quarter.

Services

Cabinet
02.07.2019

Start Up Business Grants
Scheme – Quarter 1 –
2019/20

The grant applications agreed can be found in
the minutes

PH Heritage
and Growth

Cabinet

Sports Pitch Infrastructure

1 Accepted the Premier Leagues and Football PH Culture and
Association Facilities grant award of £471,951
Operational
Services
2 Endorsed the Service Level Agreement
between Tamworth Borough Council Academies
Enterprise Trust and Tamworth Enterprise
College for the project (Appendix 1

02.07.2019

Page 48

3 Approved the fees and charges for the facility
(Appendix 2).
Cabinet
02.07.2019
Cabinet
02.07.2019

Update on Tamworth
Assembly Rooms

Endorsed the update as detailed within the PH Heritage
report
and Growth

Write Offs

1 Endorsed the amount of debt written off for
the period of 1st April 2018 to 31 March 2019 as
detailed at Appendix A-D and
2 Approved the write off of irrecoverable debt for
Housing Benefit Overpayments of £22,000.77

22

PH Assets and
Finance

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

as detailed at Appendix E

Cabinet
02.07.2019
Cabinet

Page 49

Quarter Four 2018/19
Performance Report

Endorsed the contents of this report

Gungate

Approved the Recommendations
within the report.

Market Tender

1 Approved the Council to go out to tender for a
market operator from 1st April 2020 for a period
of 5 years with an option to extend for up to an
additional 2 years

13.06.2019
Cabinet
13.06.2019

Leader

contained PH Heritage
and Growth

2 Endorsed the Project Initiation Document –
appendix 1
3 Delegated authority to the Assistant Director
for Regeneration and Growth in consultation
with the Portfolio Holder for Assets & Finance
to:
A Commence the procurement process
including the approval of the detail of the tender

23

PH Assets and
Finance

Chief Exec and
section 151
Officer
AD
Regeneration
and Growth in
consultation with
the Portfolio
Holder for
Assets &
Finance

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

PH Regulatory
and
Community
Safety

AD Growth and
Regeneration

B Following the procurement and evaluation
process, appoint an operator

Two further confidential recommendations
contained within the report were also approved
by Cabinet

Page 50

Cabinet
13.06.2019

Design Supplementary
Planning Document

1 Approved the adoption of the Design
Supplementary Planning Document
2 Noted the comments received during the
consultation period and the Council’s response
to them
3 Authorised the Assistant Director Growth and
Regeneration to make minor changes to the
Design Supplementary Planning Document and
publish a final version of the document

Cabinet
13.06.2019

Capital Outturn Report
2018/19

1 Received the final outturn position of the
2018/19 capital programme as summarised in
Appendix A
2 Approved for each of the projects detailed in

24

PH Assets and
Finance

Tamworth Borough Council – Decisions taken by the Cabinet on MeetingDate
Meeting date Agenda title

Decisions (ie Resolutions agreed)

Executive
Member

Appendix B the re-profiling of the budget into
the Authority’s Capital Programme 2019/20
(total £40.283m)
Council
21.05.2019

Page 51

Council
21.05.2019
Council
21.05.2019

The Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to
Information) regulations
2012

Endorsed the Annual Executive Arrangements
Report

Review of the Constitution &
Scheme of Delegation

Approved and adopted the Constitution and
PH Assets and
Scheme of Delegation as presented in Appendix Finance
1

Regulation of Members
Conduct

Endorsed the findings of the contents of the Chief Exec
report.

25

Leader

Officer
Delegation (if
relevant)

This page is intentionally left blank

Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan
Work Plan 2019 – 2020
TARGET MEETING
DATE

MEETING WHEN ITEM
ADDED TO WORK PLAN
June 2019

25th March 2020

Member Training update
Member Support Working group – sub group on Member
Communications
Review of Cabinet decisions over previous 12 month period

May 2020
June 2020
June 2020
July 2020
August 2020
TBC
TBC
TBC
Quarter 4 2020

Parking Toolkit review
Gungate Masterplan
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021 onwards - revisit
Review of Legal Services (post implementation)
The Assembly Rooms – review of project
Housing Repairs & Investment Contract Review
Solway Trading Company Update (2x per year)
Market tender progress Update
Asset Management update

25th March 2020
25th March 2020

Page 53

October 2019
January 2020
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
December 2019
August 2019
December 2019

Agenda Item 11

SUBJECT

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings
25th March 2020 (moved from 12th March)

Page 54

